
Page 79 of 125



Page 80 of 125



Page 81 of 125



Page 82 of 125



Page 83 of 125



Page 84 of 125



Page 85 of 125



Page 86 of 125



Page 87 of 125



Page 88 of 125



Page 89 of 125



Page 90 of 125



Page 91 of 125



Page 92 of 125



Page 93 of 125



Page 94 of 125



Page 95 of 125



Page 96 of 125



Page 97 of 125



Page 98 of 125



Page 99 of 125



Page 100 of 125



Page 101 of 125



Page 102 of 125



Page 103 of 125



Page 104 of 125



Page 105 of 125



Page 106 of 125



Page 107 of 125



Page 108 of 125



Page 109 of 125



Page 110 of 125



Page 111 of 125



Page 112 of 125



Page 113 of 125



Page 114 of 125



Page 115 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 1 of 10 
 

EXCERPT DRAFT MINUTES 
LEELANAU TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
Thursday, November 10, 2022 

7:00 p.m. 
Leelanau Township Hall 

119 E. Nagonaba St., Northport, MI 49670 
With public participation available via Zoom Remote Electronic Access 

Zoom Meeting ID: 881 0982 5018   Passcode: 496700 
 
 
1. PLANNING COMMISSION CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, NOTATION OF QUORUM:  

This meeting was conducted at the Leelanau Township Hall, 119 E. Nagonaba Street, Northport, MI 49670, with 
public participation available via Zoom remote electronic access. 
 
The Meeting was called to order by Chair Kalchik at 7:00 p.m. 
He asked each member to introduce themselves. 

 
Members Present: Brigid Hart, Brian Mitchell, Steve Kalchik, Gina Harder, Phyllis Rebori, Tom Weber. 
 
Absent:  Kristi Fischer (asked to be excused) 
 
Quorum Established 

  
Also present: 
Staff: Zoning Administrator Steve Patmore (ZA) 
Public and Officials:   3 at Township Hall 

Approximately 12 others joined via Zoom Electronic Remote Access 
 
   

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Chair Kalchik asked if there were any additions or changes to the draft Agenda.  
 

Motion by Harder to approve the draft Agenda as presented. 
 Seconded by: Mitchell 
 Discussion: None. 
 Voice Vote:  All Ayes, one absent 
 Motion Carried 
 
 
3. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT(S) OF INTEREST:   
 Chair Kalchik asked Commissioner’s if they had any conflict of interest on any item on this agenda. 
  
 Kalchik re-stated that he farms a property adjacent to the parcel being considered for rezoning. He 

doesn’t feel that it’s a conflict, but if the commission feels that it is, he will step out. 
  
 No other conflicts were stated. 
 
 
 

Page 116 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 2 of 10 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE: 
 Chair Kalchik asked Zoning Administrator Patmore if there were any Announcements or 

Correspondence. Patmore noted the following: 
 There was no written correspondence for this meeting. 
 The Referendum on the Zoning Amendment (Ordinance No. 1 of 2022) was held and the 

ordinance was upheld, meaning the zoning amendment will become effective when the election 
results are certified by the Election Commission/Board of Canvassers. Commissioner Hart said 
that she is on the County Board of Canvassers and they met today, but did not get the election 
certified. Probably will be next Monday. 

  
5. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 Chair Kalchik reminded the public that public comments at this time would be limited to three minutes.  

He then opened the floor to public comment. No public comments given. 
 
He noted that there will be time allotted during the Public Hearing to comment on the proposed rezoning. 
 

 Allen Dalzell: Leelanau Township, is glad to see everyone back and healthy again. Has no 
objection to the rezoning. It is one of the few parcels left on the bluff or on the shoreline. The 
question that comes up, as Gene Garthe brought up, is the road situation, and you need to be 
serious about how that is handled. 

 Anne Harper, congratulations on the voters supporting the original ordinance. Think it is great 
news for the township. Regarding Master Plan, she went back to looking again at some of the 
watershed and coastal planning sections and discovered that Heather Smith, our Grand Traverse 
Waterkeeper, Baykeeper, sent a letter to the township on January 7,  2022 offering some 
suggestions. She mentions a number of pages where our consultant is not using the most up-to-
date report. She would like to call the PC’s attention to this letter because the website does not 
reflect the changes and she doesn’t know if they were discussed. One of them involves Northport 
Creek, which is a hot topic in the Village, which is part of the township. She hopes that the whole 
commission has seen the January 7th letter and hopes that someone will figure out the changes, 
especially the basic report dates. She is disappointed that consultants don’t have the latest reports 
in their draft. Just wants to make sure that things like Heather’s great help with environmental 
issues get acted upon. Thank-you 

 Barbara Weber, lives in the Village. Did not get to vote on the ordinance because she lives in the 
Village, but is happy it went through. The whole township wants to protect the environment, and 
hope it is placed well in the Master Plan. Is concerned about BLT stating that the ordinance is 
illegal, because it is not. She would like the commission to issue a statement supporting their 
work. People are still talking about the ordinance being illegal, but it is not. Also asking the 
commission to look into whether BLT is a legitimate organization. Thank-you. 

 Ken Arnt: lives off of Old Farm Road. Supports the gentleman’s idea that the road is a huge issue. 
Also questions is there a need for R-1?, or could this be divided in an agricultural setting. Big fear 
is that years down the road they would try to do more divisions. The watershed is a big issue, they 
only address that in the conditions. The access road is the big issue. They are going to double the 
houses on the road if this division goes through, and the road is very circumspect right now. 
Thank-you. 

 
Hearing no further public comment, Chair Kalchik closed the floor to public comment. 

Page 117 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 3 of 10 
 

 
 
6. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Consideration of the Application to re-zone 45-008-232-014-00, 
East Seth Road, from Agricultural to R-1 Residential, with voluntary conditions – submitted by Chris 
Amann: 
Chair Kalchik re-opened the Public Hearing adjourned on September 8, 2022, and asked ZA Patmore 
to introduce the subject. 
 
ZA Patmore gave the following background; 
 A rezoning is a Zoning Map Amendment to the Official Zoning Ordinance, and is covered in the 

Michigan Zoning Enabling Act and the Leelanau Township Zoning Ordinance. 
 The Planning Commission (PC) reviews applications for Map and Text Amendments, conducts a 

Public Hearing, and makes a recommendation to the Township Board. 
 By statute, the recommendation is reviewed by the County Planning Commission. 
 The Township Board then considers the formal amendment to the zoning ordinance. 
 The Michigan Statute provides for the voluntary offering of conditions for a rezoning by an 

applicant. These must be voluntary and must be submitted in writing. 
 The Michigan Statute and Article 21 of the Leelanau Township Zoning Ordinance contain 

provisions for the review of Conditional Rezonings, which are in addition to the regular standards 
for rezonings contained in Article 10 of the zoning ordinance. 

 Chris Amann submitted an application to rezone the subject property on Seth Road from 
Agricultural Zoning to R-1 Residential Zoning.  

 The original application did not originally include any voluntary offer of conditions.  
 A Public Hearing was commenced on August 25, 2022. After discussion, the Hearing was 

adjourned to September 8, 2022.  
 On September 8th, there was considerable discussion on possible voluntary conditions, and the 

Hearing was adjourned again to October 13, 2022. 
 On October 11, 2022 we received a written offer of conditions from the Applicant. 
 The October 13, 2022 PC meeting was cancelled due to Covid-19 exposures. 
 This offer of conditions constitutes a change to the application, and we re-published the Public 

Hearing and sent out new Public Notices for the November 10th Hearing. 
 Conditional rezonings are reviewed under Article 21 of the zoning ordinance. The process is 

outlined in that Article. Standards are in Article 10. 
 If the township board is in agreement with a recommendation to rezone, they would have the 

required paperwork prepared to execute the conditional rezoning. 
 This request with voluntary conditions is an amendment to the original application, however, the 

Public Hearing must be re-opened due to the changes. 
 Tonight we will briefly review Article 21 and the Standards in Article 10. 
 The PC is a recommending body – the township board makes the final decision – and the decision 

is subject to a referendum under state statute. 
 
Chair Kalchik asked if the Applicant or their representatives wanted to speak. 
Chris Grobbel, the agent for the Applicant made the following comments: 

Page 118 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 4 of 10 
 

 Chris Amman, the property owner, is on-line and will make comments. 
 They listened to the PC and incorporated comments into something that is hopefully 

approvable.  
 On October 10th, they provided a list of six voluntary conditions under the conditional 

rezoning provisions of the state zoning enabling act. 
 The first is a voluntary conservation easement on everything lakeward of that significant 

ridge. The only thing that would ever happen there is a stairway or walkway access to the 
shoreline from the houses. 

 No more than four lots total after this rezoning. It is a 27.9 acre parcel. If they came in under 
open space Article 13, they could get as many as 52 units in there, and they are only asking 
for four parcels. 

 The third thing would be compliance with the private road ordinance to get to those four 
parcels. Common in zoning is anything over three homes that are accessed goes from a 
driveway to a private road. They would stipulate up front that the driveway would be up to 
private road standards to serve all four lots. 

 The fourth thing is stormwater. This would be required anyway by the county. You can’t 
discharge stormwater in a greater quantity post development than pre development. You get a 
county permit. It would be stored on-site. The commitment would be that these four new lots 
would have no additional water that would get to Old Farm Road. It would be a combination 
of berms, catchments, and bioswales that would capture materials and groundwater infiltration 
would be the ultimate disposition. 

 Commit to getting all permits. And on that line, he has provided a letter from the state that 
their determination is that yes, they will have to comply with setbacks of the township. This is 
not an area that will regulated by the High Risk Erosion program. That area is down by the 
shoreline, not up top. This comes from Robyn Schmidt letter back on May 6th he thinks. 

 With those conditions, the request would be for rezoning limited to four new parcels. 
 We lost (Realtor) John Watkins since the last meeting. 
 Chris Amman wants to make some comments. 

 
Chris Amman introduced himself. He thanked the ZA for his assistance. Chris is not doing this for 
the purpose of speculation or making a profit. He grew up in Michigan and has been to Northport and 
Lake Leelanau several times and fell in love with the area. His intention is to retain one parcel to 
build a home and sell the other three parcels to make it economically viable. He is happy with having 
four parcels. He wants to make sure that hes complying with regulations and township standards. 
 
Public Comments: 
Chair Kalchik opened the floor to public comments at this time, and asked the public to keep their 
comments within three minutes. 

 Jim Holmes, 9615 E. Seth Road, wrote the letter complaining that his family’s property would 
be most affected by the runoff. He doesn’t believe that there is any amount of assurances, 
promises, or written agreements that could possibly remediate what would happen to them if 
this development does what its likely to do, that is create more runoff and go through their 
property. The other point is that the second page of his letter is not on the website record, and 
asked that it be part of the record. He noticed when looking at records, when Mr. Amman 
purchased the property it was under the name of a series limited liability company, not in his 
own name. The original deed went into a series limited liability company, that is a very 

Page 119 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 5 of 10 
 

sophisticated investment vehicle for development. Questions the thought that this is just 
happenstance that he (owner) has to get some neighbors up there to help pay for this 
investment. This from the get-go was a development by taking ownership through a series 
LLC. Holmes can’t buy into this. He hardly believes that paying too much for a parcel of 
property is reason enough to rezone. That’s what this boils down to. Worse yet, he paid too 
much and then took title in a manner that he anticipates that this zoning request will go 
through so he could pull this off. There is no other reason to put this under a series LLC 
except for development. Thank-you, appreciate your time. 

 Ken Arntz: Big question over whether state EGLE has jurisdiction over setback rules (bluff) 
or the township. If the letter from EGLE says that they have to adhere to zoning standards, 
then if the slope is greater than 50 percent, the setback is the difference in elevation times the 
slope. Another person in the township was looking at that and the setback is 135 feet. Are 
there engineering drawings? This will have to be verified. Setback is a big thing. If he goes by 
current EGLE standards it’s a two tiered bluff and he’s qualifying the bottom tier as his bluff, 
not the top tier. Ken does not know if that will hold water. But if it’s the township, then it’s 
(setback) the slope times the delta elevation difference. Ken thinks that this needs an 
engineering drawing verified, he doesn’t know if that’s occurred, he hasn’t seen any 
documents on that.  We know that the owner is putting in driveways coming off just for the 
lot. That’s not what we’re talking about. The impact to the existing road is what everyone is 
concerned about. He is trying to limit his costs to that little segment. We are looking at it from 
a neighborhood standpoint. That needs to be addressed very vigorously. Thank-you. 
 

Hearing no further comments, Chair Kalchik closed the floor tom public comment, and asked if there 
were any written comments. 
 
ZA Patmore noted that there was no new written correspondence received since the last meeting. 
 
Chair Kalchik closed the Public Hearing at 7:30 p.m. and directed the discussion back to the PC. Are 
there any questions at this time? 
 

 The written conditions state that the conservation easement could be held by the Leelanau 
Conservancy or Leland Township. Is the owner serious about Leland Township? 
Grobbel stated that was a typo, should say Leelanau Township. 

 The PC noted that a potential density of 52 units was quoted tonight (by Grobbel). Where 
does that number come from? Do not see where that could happen. 
Grobbel stated that this is not what they are proposing. That was based upon half acre density. 
Commissioner Harder questioned the 52 units quoting Article 13 where the multiplier is 0.15 
for the Agricultural District, and with 27.9 acres that gives you four lots. 
Grobbel stated that this is not the proposal. The idea is that there could be a lot more density 
there, and that is not what was proposed. 
Harder stated that she wanted it clarified that maybe there could be more density, but not 
under the open space ordinance. That number is not accurate. 
Grobbel stated that they are asking for a rezoning, and none of that is on the table right now. 
Harder stated that they need to compare the allowable densities for a rezoning request, and the 
number that was presented is not right. 

Page 120 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 6 of 10 
 

Grobbel stated that somewhere in the ordinance there is half-acre density, but they are only 
asking for 4 parcels. 

 Has the Leelanau Conservancy evaluated the property for a conservation easement? 
Grobbel: Under law, there are only a few parties that can hold a conservation easement. 
Typically the Leelanau Conservancy, where he worked for many years, and still does work 
for, does not take this kind of easement. They want it to happen at the township level. In 
difficult cases they might step up and be a bridge holder. It would ultimately be the township 
who holds it. A conservation easement can only be held by a land trust, State of Michigan, or 
a local unit of government, nobody else. The point is that there be a conservation easement 
held by whomever agrees to hold it. If we get a rezoning we would go ask the Conservancy. 
Could possibly do a deed restriction. 

 Would the proposed access to the shoreline down the steep slope require an EGLE permit? 
Yes 

 Discussion on what a conservation easement contains – tailored to a specific project. 
 Would all four lots have access to the walkway? 

To be determined by the owner. What is being discussed is two larger lots with shoreline 
access and two back lots marketed for small scale farming that would not have shoreline 
access. 

 Robyn Schmidt’s letter mentions the potential of wetlands on the property. Is there a map? 
Grobbel stated that there is nothing up above that we are talking about tonight. Down below 
there are probably wetlands near the shoreline, and nothing is proposed there. 

 The letter from Robyn Schmidt states that this property is regulated under Part 323, and states 
that all work anywhere on the property requires an EGLE permit. That is confusing from what 
the PC has been told tonight. 
Grobbel stated that the ECL is the zero point that you measure back from, and we are 
hundreds and hundreds of feet away from that. 

 But you still need EGLE permits for septic and construction? 
Grobbel: No, they (EGLE) have said that what the owner is proposing to construct, that they 
have no jurisdiction. Their jurisdiction is down on the shoreline. He talks with Robyn almost 
every day and they will certainly let her know what they are doing. There is no need for a 
permit to do what they are proposing for four houses up on the bluff. 
ZA Patmore noted that Robyn’s email states that construction and septic system work 
anywhere on the parcel requires a permit. That has been his experience. 
Grobbel: The 30 year and 60 year setback are way down. 
Patmore: He understands that the setbacks are determined by EGLE from the ECL, but the 
entire parcel is designated as within the High Risk Erosion Area (HREA). 
Grobbel: we can stipulate that with a changed condition if need be, but their jurisdiction is a 
long ways away. There is no Critical Dune designation, so there is no broader jurisdiction 
beyond their setbacks. 
Patmore: the entire parcel is listed as within the HREA. 
Grobbel: but that means you have a 30 year and 60 year setback. If you are landward of the 60 
year setback, they have nothing to say about what you build, “and you know that”. 
Patmore stated that he doesn’t agree with that statement, and it conflicts with the EGLE email 
that was submitted. 
Harder stated that Grobbels statements conflict with the email. 
Grobbel said that they can get this all cleared up if that is a condition. 

Page 121 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 7 of 10 
 

Mitchell noted that the Applicant will still need to get any and all required permits. If they 
need an EGLE permit, they will have to get an EGLE permit. 
The township is covered, it’s just that there were conflicting statements made. 

 Article 15 – Environmental Standards does not regulate bluffs that are within a High Risk 
Erosion Area. Is the Applicant offering to meet these standards when they are exempt? 
Grobbel: Yes, the setbacks will be based upon the formula. 
Patmore: you don’t need to do that, the ordinance is clear that it defers to the state when the 
parcel is designated as HREA. 
Grobbel: Condition number 4 says that we will meet the township setback when we come in 
for Land Use Permits. 

 The Application states that the zoning change is in accordance with the Master Plan - the 
Master Plan delineates this area as Residential Conservation with a ten acre density. 
Grobbel replied that the Application was intended to show that the four proposed lots would 
be consistent with the Master Plan and the existing surrounding properties. 

 
 

Findings of Fact on the Rezoning Criteria – Section 10.7.A of the zoning ordinance 
 

The Planning Commission shall consider not less than the following criteria in its evaluation of a 
petition to rezone property within the Township prior to making its recommendation to the 
Township Board in accordance with Article IV of Act 110 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 
2006, as amended. 

 
ZA Patmore noted that this does not necessarily state that all of these criteria have to be met – 
just that they must be considered by the Planning Commission. 

 
1. The Planning Commission should first consider whether or not the map change is 

appropriate; that is, whether the proposed use could be better accommodated by amending 
the zoning ordinance text itself to allow the use as permitted use or as a special condition 
land use. 
 
The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds: 

 Under the existing agricultural zoning the underlying density is ten acre lot size, 

however, under the Open Space Residential Development (OSRD) provisions in 

Article 13, a property owner with 27.9 acres could get four lots on this property 

provided the 50% Open Space provision and other provisions are met. 

 The OSRD process is not a PUD or Special Use Permit. 

 The Applicant does not want to cluster, and wants to have two, ten acre lots and two 

smaller lots. This configuration would not meet Article 13. 

 The PC does not want to amend the provisions of the Agricultural Zoning District 

that would allow the desired configuration. 

 The proposed voluntary condition of a maximum four lots would result in the same 

number of lots as an OSRD in the Agricultural Zoning District would allow. 

 The proposed voluntary condition of a conservation easement would be similar, but 

not exactly the same, as the OSRD Open Space requirements. 

 

Page 122 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 8 of 10 
 

2. The applicant should demonstrate that there is evidence of a changed condition. This 
evidence can be provided in terms of an evaluation of land use trends in the vicinity or 
through the submittal of a marketing study. 

 

 The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds: 

 A regional housing study shows a need for housing of various housing types. 

 Previous review of rezoning requests in Leelanau Township have recognized the 

need for additional housing sites. 

 
3. The rezoning request should be evaluated for consistency with the adopted master plan. This 

includes the future land use plan map, any adopted sub-area development plan, as well as for 
consistency with the master plan narrative. 

 

 The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds: 

 The 2010 Leelanau Township Master Plan Future Land Use Map delineates this 

parcel as Rural Residential. 

 The current Rural Residential zoning language would allow an Open Space 

Residential Development with a density greater than what is being proposed. 

 The township is in the process of updating the 2010 Master Plan. 

 The proposed voluntary conditions would bring the Application in line with the 

density of the Rural Residential District. 

 
4. The proposed zoning should be evaluated for its compatibility with the existing land use 

pattern. The community should ask itself if uses in the proposed zone are equally, less, or better 
suited to the area. 

 
 The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds: 

 The Applications with conditions is compatible with existing land use patterns. 

 There is active agricultural production in the immediate vicinity, and the Applicant 

should consider that when siting their houses. 

 It was suggested that the Applicant consider a voluntary condition to increase the 

minimum R-1 setbacks on this property. 

 
5. The evaluation of the rezoning should also consider if the proposed use could be built on the 

subject site if it were to be rezoned. Is the parcel size sufficient? Are there environmental 
restrictions (i.e., soils, wetlands, floodplains, etc.) that would make the site non-buildable or are 
they showing that the property cannot be used as presently zoned due to these limitations? 

 
 The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds: 

 The Application has shown that they could get four houses on the property. 

 The property is designated by the State of Michigan as a High Risk Erosion Area. 

The property owner will be required to get approval and permits for any construction 

on the property. Michigan EGLE has jurisdiction over the bluff setback. 

 Although the regulated bluff setbacks in Article 15 of the zoning ordinance defers to 

Page 123 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 9 of 10 
 

the State of Michigan when the property is in the HREA, the Applicant has submitted 

a voluntary condition to meet the Article 15 bluff setback requirements. 

 According to the Applicant, any wetlands on the site are located in the lower area 

and would not be impacted. 

 
6. Is the site served by adequate public facilities or is the petitioner able to provide them? 

  
 The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds: 

 Old Farm Road is not in adequate condition to provide adequate emergency services. 

 The Leelanau Township Private Road Ordinance has provision for the use of pre-existing 

private roads that requires a private road to meet minimum standards prior to issuance of 

Land Use Permits. This will be resolved at the time of Land Use Permits. 

 The proposed four lot maximum is no more than could be created under existing zoning. 

 The Leelanau County Road Commission is responsible to review any Land Division request. They 

will have the responsibility to review the impact to the public portion of Seth Road. 

  
7. Are there sites nearby already properly zoned that can be used for the intended purposes? 

 
 The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds that the Application with voluntary 

conditions meets this criteria. 

 
8. Is the proposal consistent with the established zoning pattern or does it represent spot zoning? For 

purposes of this Ordinance, spot zoning shall be defined as the assignment of a zoning 
classification different from the surrounding zoning classifications to a relatively small land 
parcel, intended to benefit a particular property owner, which is incompatible with the 
surrounding area and is also in violation of the community’s master plan. 

 
 The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds that the Application with voluntary 

conditions does not represent spot zoning. 

 
9. Would a lesser district classification be more appropriate? The petitioner may want a R-3 

district; however, a R-2 district may permit the proposed use. 
 

 The Leelanau Township Planning Commission finds that the Application with voluntary 

conditions meets this criteria. 

 

10. The community should evaluate whether other local remedies are available which are better 
suited to the circumstances of the petition. 

 
   The Leelanau Township Planning Commission did not identify any other remedies. 

 

Discussion on proposed voluntary conditions submitted by Applicant: 
 
Condition 1: Change Leland Township to Leelanau. 
Condition 2: Ok 
Condition 3: Change “he” to “the”. 
Condition 4: Add the word “be” between the words “to” and “retained”. 

Page 124 of 125



 
11/10/2022 Excerpt PC Draft Minutes 

 

Leelanau Township Planning Commission 
Excerpt of Draft Minutes of November 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 Page 10 of 10 
 

Condition 5: Add “voluntary compliance with” Township steep slope setback. 
Condition 6: No typos, however the PC and Staff disagree with the Applicant’s conclusion that the 

email provided to the township states that EGLE has no jurisdiction other than at the 
lakeshore. 

 
 

  Motion by Mitchell to recommend approval of the Application submitted by Chris Amman to rezone 
property no. 45-008-232-014-00 on Seth Road from Agricultural to R-1 Residential subject to the 
voluntary conditions submitted by the Applicant including the voluntary amendments to the conditions 
discussed tonight. This decision is based upon the Rezoning Criteria Findings of Fact, and considering 
the Application and Public Hearing. 

 
  Seconded by: Harder 

 Discussion: Rebori would like to see a clean copy of the voluntary conditions before voting. 
   Roll Call Vote:   Weber – Yes 
     Mitchell – Yes 
     Rebori – No 
     Harder – Yes 
     Hart – Yes 
     Kalchik – Yes 
     Fischer – absent 
 
   Motion Carried 5-1 

 
   
   
  

Page 125 of 125




